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From: Bone, Traci <traci.bone@cpuc.ca.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, May 5, 2020 1:49 PM
To: Jason Wilson
Cc: Ward, Alec; Castello, Stephen; JQTran@socalgas.com; EHenry@socalgas.com; 

CSierzant@socalgas.com; AHolland@socalgas.com; Campbell, Michael; Sherin Varghese
Subject: Proposed Agenda for Cal Advocates / SoCalGas 11:00 Conference Call on Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
Attachments: Subpoena to SoCalGas for Accounting Database Access - Service Copy.pdf

Jason:

In preparation for our call tomorrow, please find attached hereto a Subpoena to Produce Access To 
Company Accounting Databases signed by the Commission’s Executive Director.  The subpoena is 
consistent with the data request we served on Friday, May 1, 2020.  While a subpoena is not a 
prerequisite to obtaining access to a utility’s accounts, given our history with SoCalGas on this 
investigation, the Public Advocates Office (Cal Advocates) opted for the additional authority provided 
by a subpoena. 

Consistent with Friday’s data request and our goal to obtain access to SoCalGas’ accounts as soon 
as practicable, we propose to focus our discussion at tomorrow’s scheduled meeting on how and 
when our staff will be able to access SoCalGas’ accounting systems both remotely and on-site.  As 
the Friday data request explained:

At a minimum, SoCalGas should be prepared to identify the following information on the 
conference call: 

• The date remote access to the SAP system will be provided, and if not feasible, the 
specific reasons why it is not feasible, including confirmation of whether or not any 
SoCalGas employees or auditors have remote access to the SAP system. 

• If remote access is not available, the date and location for a site visit so that the auditor 
can access the SAP system. 

• At least two primary points of contact to ensure that the Cal Advocates auditor is able to 
access the SAP system and any accounts the auditor seeks to review.  These contacts 
must be highly knowledgeable about SoCalGas’ SAP system and available to answer 
questions that will facilitate Cal Advocates’ inquiry. 

• An afterhours contact to resolve SAP issues if such a contact exists for SoCalGas 
employees or auditors. 

• Any other SAP resources available to SoCalGas employees or auditors. 

In addition, while I had committed to provide a list of questions related to the SoCalGas/Sempra 
“Lobbying Activity Tracking System” or “LATS” on the same call, it appears that many of the 
documents provided by SoCalGas regarding LATS training, which would inform that discussion, have 
been redacted, and several appear to be missing pages of information that would have been in the 
original version.  In addition, as communicated to you yesterday, the list of LATS data fields provided 
in response to DR #13, Question 2 appears to be incomplete.  Consequently, we should plan to 
address those issues – is data missing and why are there redactions? 

Regarding the redactions, we understand that these documents were provided by Sempra, but that 
does not excuse the failure to properly mark information claimed to be confidential with highlights – 
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rather than blackouts – or the failure to provide declarations identifying the legal basis for any 
confidentiality claims pursuant to General Order (GO) 66.  Further, to the extent this information has 
been redacted because of assertions of privilege, SoCalGas/Sempra should provide a privilege log.   

For context, you should understand that these are all issues that were raised in Cal Advocates’ first 
Motion to Compel, which was granted.  Consequently, Cal Advocates is understandably troubled by 
the fact that we are revisiting these issues now.

Given these concerns, we propose to address the LATS issues as follows: 

• That SoCalGas and/or Sempra provide no later than this Friday, May 8, 2020, full and
complete copies of all of the LATS training materials (including Appendices) with no redactions
unless you or a SoCalGas attorney is willing to provide a declaration that there is a good faith
basis for any claims or privilege or confidentiality asserted.  In that case, any confidential
information should be highlighted as provided in previous data requests, rather than redacted.

o We note that SoCalGas and/or Sempra clearly have ready access to these documents
and so producing them without the unjustified redactions should be easily
accomplished.

o We also note that the current black outs appear to be names of Sempra or SoCalGas
employees.  Please be advised that such information is not confidential absent other
personal identifying information such as a social security number, bank account
number, or medical information – in which case that personal identifying information (but
not the employee’s name) should be redacted consistent with the instructions in DR
#13.

• That SoCalGas answer the question I posed yesterday, which is whether the list of LATS data
fields provided in response to DR #13, Question 2 is complete and lists all LATS data fields, as
requested.

• That, consistent with yesterday’s request, a SoCalGas and/or Sempra employee
knowledgeable about the LATS system, including how it works, what it contains, and when it is
required to be used, be available for the Wednesday, May 6, 2020 scheduled conference call.
These are the basic questions that need to be answered.  In addition, employees should be
available to explain the reasons for the redactions and whether information is missing from the
LATS training documents.  If such a person (or persons) is not available on Wednesday, they
should be made available for the conference call we currently have scheduled for this Friday,
May 8.

We look forward to SoCalGas’ prompt resolution of these matters on tomorrow’s conference call.

Traci Bone, Attorney 
California Public Utilities Commission 
505 Van Ness Avenue 
San Francisco, CA  94102 
Work: (415) 703-2048 
Cell: (415) 713-3599 
tbo@cpuc.ca.gov
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May 7, 2020 

 
VIA E-MAIL ONLY 
 
Traci Bone 
Public Advocates Office 
505 Van Ness Ave. 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
Email: tbo@cpuc.ca.gov 

   

 
Re: Meet and Confer Regarding Data Requests 

Dear Traci: 

I am writing to confirm our discussion in the meet and confer held on Wednesday, May 6, 2020.  
We look forward to working together cooperatively to ensure Cal Advocates access to the SAP 
system. We appreciate and take seriously the subpoena that Cal Advocates has served.   

DR 14/Subpoena 

Possible Ways Cal Advocates Can Obtain Remote Access 

SoCalGas presented two possible options for providing remote access to the SAP system. The 
first is to essentially copy portions of the database you requested, which would preserve a copy 
of the database and allow Mr. Wuehler to view the necessary databases without altering the 
underlying system (“Copy Access”). To our understanding, this is the arrangement used in the 
GRC with Cal Advocates previously, although such access was previously provided on site. We 
were made aware that if organizations and cost centers were identified, this process typically 
takes a couple days, depending on how broad the request is. You noted your concern that Cal 
Advocates would not know which cost centers it wanted access to until it had a chance to view 
the full system, so would need access to all cost centers available in SAP. We apprised you that 
we did not know how long creating a copy of the entire system would take, but that it would be 
likely to take longer than the “few days” deadline we were given for a limited set of data.   

The second option we discussed would be remote access to the database, but with additional 
controls included (“Read-Only Access”). We informed you that SoCalGas has only completed 
this task on one other occasion using an RSA token. You asked whether accounting personnel 
currently had access, and whether the San Francisco computers had access to the SAP system. 
We answered affirmatively to the former and agreed to look into the other question. However, 
we noted that both company laptops used by accounting personnel and any other computer 
would be connected to a live SAP system. As the auditor would undoubtedly need a read-only 
copy, neither of these are complete options. We are waiting for additional information on how 
long the process of creating Read-Only Access would take, particularly as we navigate 
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restrictions due to coronavirus. While we did not discuss in-depth, the parties seemed to agree 
that this also made physical access more difficult.  

Extension of Time to Respond to the Subpoena 
 
In light of the uncertainty as to exactly how long it will take to set up remote access, Cal 
Advocates agreed to extend SoCalGas’ response date to the subpoena accompanying Data 
Request 14 from Friday, March 8, 2020 to Wednesday, March 13, 2020. SoCalGas appreciates 
your professional courtesy.     
 
You further agreed that you would discuss with Mr. Wuehler whether any narrowing 
identification could be provided to expedite Copy Access of the relevant SAP databases. 
 
SoCalGas agreed to continue to obtain additional information about how long broad Copy 
Access would take to prepare, as well as identify a timeline for Read-Only Access. We further 
agreed to investigate whether a member of the IT department could answer additional questions 
regarding RSA tokens and copying data for Cal Advocates to further adjust the timeline, as long 
as the questioning was limited to those topics. SoCalGas further agreed to investigate and 
consider your proposal regarding after hours support. We will be prepared to discuss these issues 
further on Friday.  
 
Preservation of SoCalGas’s Confidentiality Objection 

Regarding confidential information, you agreed that SoCalGas could review any outputs you 
desired to use for confidentiality, and that such items would be held securely and branded as 
confidential to prevent any public release via a CPRA request or any similar requirement to 
make public records in Cal Advocates’ possession.  

Regarding technical assistance, you agreed that any party provided to answer questions from Mr. 
Wuehler would be solely for technical advice and that you personally would not be on calls with 
this individual. You clarified your request regarding after hours support to indicate that you are 
only seeking the same level of after-hours support currently available to SoCalGas employees. 

DR 13 

Regarding our response to DR-13, Question 1, you indicated that employee names and emails 
should not be redacted but highlighted for confidentiality and should have been provided in 
native PowerPoint format. You further asked to view trainings from 2019 and 2020, to the extent 
they were not previously provided. 

SoCalGas further explained that while it might have appeared as if pages were missing, the 
documents were provided in an as-saved format, and those pages never existed as part of the 
saved presentation. 
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SoCalGas also informed you of additional dependent fields that exist in LATS and agreed to 
amend its response accordingly, as well as to investigate additional fields that you believed 
might exist.  

Cal Advocates noted that it is amenable to narrowing its requests related to LATS by reviewing 
Ken Chawkins’ LATS entries for 2015 through 2020 in the first instance. You proposed this in a 
follow up email, indicating that Cal Advocates would be satisfied if SoCalGas provided all of 
Ken Chawkins LATS entries for the past five years. 

We agreed to convey your concern regarding native documents and redacted documents to 
Sempra, as custodian of the documents. We agreed to look into whether there were additional 
trainings in 2019 and 2020 you had not received and continue to dialogue on this question via 
email, calls, or the Friday meet and confer. SoCalGas also agreed to amend its response to DR-
13, Question 2 by Wednesday, May 13, 2020 to provide dependent fields.  

SoCalGas agreed to see if it was feasible to produce Ken Chawkins’ LATS entries for a 5-year 
period quickly. 

Other Requests 

You requested information about why SoCalGas does not provide the name of a staff member in 
its responses. We agreed to discuss this internally and provide additional information.  

You stated your position that in responding to data requests, SoCalGas should use the LATS 
training definitions for all responses and define lobbying to include activities that are either (1) 
lobbying OR (2) “influencing” activities. You further sent an email stating that lobbying activity 
any activity that would be included in LATS and directed us to several pages of a LATS 
presentation. Accordingly, you state your position that “lobbying” should be defined to be, (1) 
lobbying activity (“[b]roadly defined as a communication with an elected or appointed official 
intended to influence legislative or administrative action; (2) administrative testimony; and (3) 
grassroots lobbying – public outreach. 

SoCalGas stated it was working on revised responses which clarify its answers in DR 12. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 
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In addition to talking by phone this Friday, we also scheduled a further meet and confer for 
Wednesday, May 13, 2020 at 11:30 AM. Please feel free to contact me if you have any 
questions. 

Very truly yours, 

Jason H. Wilson 
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From: Bone, Traci <traci.bone@cpuc.ca.gov>
Sent: Friday, May 8, 2020 9:45 AM
To: Henry, Elliott S
Cc: Ward, Alec; Castello, Stephen; Tran, Johnny Q; Jason Wilson; Sierzant, Corinne M; Holland, Brooke; 

Campbell, Michael; Sherin Varghese
Subject: RE: SAP questions

Elliott: 
 
Thank you for arranging for someone familiar with the SAP system to be on the call today.   We had a chance to speak 
with our auditor, James Wuehler (Jim), and he confirmed that Cal Advocates can work with SoCalGas to identify specific 
databases we want to access, rather than requiring SoCalGas to create a fixed database of the entire SAP system. 
 
First, we propose that SoCalGas make fixed database copies of the following accounts, ideally in the order set forth 
below: 
 

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 
IO 300796601 Related to Balanced Energy 
Cost Center 2200-2204  
Cost Center 2200-0811 Public Affairs Manager, LA 
CTR F426400G Exp-Civic & Related 
IO FG9200002200 Administrative and General 

Salaries 
CTR F920000G A&G Salaries 
IO FG9215632200 Public Affairs Administration 

- NonLabor 
IO FG90800002200  
Cost Center 2200-2504  Public Policy and Planning 
Cost Center 2200-0942 Related to Reach Codes 
IO FG8706502200 Related to Reach Code 

 
We are basing this request on account numbers provided in response to SoCalGas data responses.  In some instances, 
we do not have a full description of the account, and there may be typographical errors in those data responses or in our 
transcription of them.  We have tried to associate an account number with a description where one was available to 
minimize the impact of incomplete or inaccurate information. 
 
Ideally, before our call today, your SAP person could quickly run through these accounts and confirm that we have a 
working account number.  If this is not possible, and if SoCalGas has any problem identifying any of the listed accounts, 
we ask that you please contact us as soon as practicable so that we can determine what the correct account is.  Among 
other things, we can attempt to direct you to the relevant data response where the account was identified. 
 
Our hope is that you can start providing the fixed databases of these accounts early next week on a rolling basis so that 
we can start our review immediately.  
As we review these databases, Jim is likely to send additional queries to his contact at SoCalGas for additional accounts.   
 
Second, we ask that SoCalGas produce fixed databases for all accounts that are 100% shareholder funded. 
 



2

Third, we ask that SoCalGas produce fixed databased for all accounts housing costs for activities related to influencing 
public opinion on decarbonization policies. 
 
Fourth, we ask that SoCalGas identify all accounts housing costs for lobbying activities related to decarbonization 
policies.  For this request, please be sure to identify those accounts housing costs related to CPUC Proceedings R.13-11-
005 and R.19-01-011 and explain whether the costs in those accounts are limited to those proceedings, or contain costs 
for other lobbying activities related to decarbonization policies. 
 
Of course, we reserve the right to request access to additional databases as we continue our audit. 
 
Please let us know as soon as practicable if this start-up proposal is acceptable to SoCalGas and when we can expect to 
see our first delivery. 
 
We thank you, in advance, for your assistance in this matter, 
 
Traci Bone, Attorney 
California Public Utilities Commission 
505 Van Ness Avenue 
San Francisco, CA  94102 
Work: (415) 703-2048 
Cell: (415) 713-3599 
tbo@cpuc.ca.gov 
 
From: Henry, Elliott S <EHenry@socalgas.com>  
Sent: Thursday, May 07, 2020 1:23 PM 
To: Bone, Traci <traci.bone@cpuc.ca.gov> 
Cc: Ward, Alec <Alec.Ward@cpuc.ca.gov>; Castello, Stephen <Stephen.Castello@cpuc.ca.gov>; Tran, Johnny Q 
<JQTran@socalgas.com>; Jason H. Wilson (jwilson@willenken.com) <jwilson@willenken.com>; Sierzant, Corinne M 
<CSierzant@socalgas.com>; Holland, Brooke <AHolland@socalgas.com>; Campbell, Michael 
<Michael.Campbell@cpuc.ca.gov>; Sherin Varghese <svarghese@willenken.com> 
Subject: SAP questions 
 
Hello Traci, 
 
We should have someone on tomorrow who is familiar with the SAP system.  They probably will not be able to be on the 
entire time (which I would guess you wouldn’t need anyway), but I’ll try to let you know their constraints before the 
meeting.  Since different people are more familiar with different aspects of SAP, it would be helpful and most efficient to 
know what clarifications you are looking to find out ahead of time.   
 
Thank you, 
Elliott 
 
Elliott S. Henry 
Senior Counsel, Regulatory 
Southern California Gas Company | Law Department 
555 West 5th Street GT14E7 | Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Tel: 213-244-8234 |Fax: 213-629-9620 
E-Mail: EHenry@socalgas.com 

 


